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Welcome to this month’s edition of the EIAG Newsletter. We hope that you all are keeping well and safe during this third period of lock-down and have had an opportunity to be vaccinated. Planned events for early this year are already being cancelled, but maybe in the second half of the year restrictions will be lifted so that we are all able to meet together again at various ESAH/EIAG events and continue to explore the county’s history and heritage. For some ideas for trips out, such as a walk taking in Mountnessing windmill, see Essex CC’s ‘Essex Explorer’ further down this page. Also in this edition there are news items from Historic England, the Association for Industrial Archaeology and Uttlesford DC.
If you wish to make a contribution to the next Newsletter, please contact us via our email address - essexiag@gmail.com.
Programme of ESAH/EIAG visits 2021
Obviously the programme of visits for this year is already being subject to cancellations and more may follow. We will keep you up to date via this Newsletter or one-off emails.
Walk along Stoneham Street, Coggeshall, Wednesday 14th April 2021. – CANCELLED
Weds. 24th March 7:00pm Talk via Zoom by Peter Jones on the “Life & Times of the  Eastern Counties Railway” – see poster on page 7 for more details.
EIAG Annual Meeting. Saturday 13th November 2021, 2:00 pm. Chelmsford Museum. AGM followed by a talk by Dr Catherine Pearson on the Frederick Roberts Archive of Industrial History – Free for members, £2.00 for non-members
It has now been decided to hold the next Industrial Heritage Fair in Autumn 2022.
 
Essex Explorer
If you have not already seen the spring edition of Essex Explorer then do have a look by following this link: https://www.explore-essex.com/culture/essex-explorer where you will find articles on Marconi (page 18), the Essex CC Millwright (page 22) and Mountnessing windmill and walk (page 24).

Shining the light on a Lamppost
The Colchester Civic Society has an interest in cast iron street furniture in the town and some of it, like the North Bridge goes back to the 1840s. Recently “discovered” were three lampposts in Greenstead Road Colchester that were like nothing else in the town. At first it was thought that they might be former standards from the towns tramway system used to support the overhead electric wiring although the trams never ran along Greenstead Road

. 

While I would really like this to be the case unfortunately it does not seem to be so. Admittedly they do bear a resemblance but there are significant differences as can be seen by comparing the pictures below. The picture on the left is a Colchester tram standard that was in Lexden, on the right, one of the Greenstead Road lampposts. 
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Comparing the post in Greenstead Road to the Lexden example (Left) it can be seen that…

1, the finial is smaller

2, the cross arm is nearer to the top of the post compared with the Lexden version

3, the scrollwork, some of which is missing, is a different pattern.

4, the base of the lamppost is quite different to the Colchester tram standards.

The base of the three Greenstead examples (bottom centre) is a different shape from Colchester’s and has a small door giving access to the interior. The purpose of tramway standards is to support the overhead lines. Of the 303 standards on the Colchester system this would have been the sole purpose of around 95% of them so there would be no point in having the door. The shape and positioning of the door and the box is typically a place to house a time switch to control the light.

The top ring of the base of the Greenstead lamppost is 31” from the ground, certainly lower than the Colchester standards. None of the photographs in my book ‘Colchester Tramways’ (available from Red Lion Books, Colchester) shows tram standards that bear any resemblance to the three in Greenstead Road. The top centre picture is from Manchester showing a combined tram and streetlight standard and shows how the Greenstead lampposts may have looked when new. 
It seems most likely that the Greenstead lampposts, that have no makers name, were sold as a combined street light and tram/trolley bus infrastructure, but who were they sold to and where did they come from?  An article in the Essex County Standard last October did not produce any answers so if you know anything please let me know.
Peter Jones

Daniell’s Maidenburgh Street Brewery, Colchester
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Plans to redevelop this historic brewery building have recently been revealed. Currently Colchester Museum’s Resource Centre, the plans are to convert it into mixed residential use for students and other residents. The building is on the Colchester Local Heritage List as being of historic and architectural importance.
Left: Artist’s impression of the brewery building following conversion.
Below is a copy of the history of the brewery from The Inns, Taverns & Pubs of Colchester by Jess A. Jephcott -  courtesy Peter Jones.
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Brunel and Essex (more!)
In editions nos. 36 and 37 of this Newsletter, Adrian Corder-Birch reported on work which involved Isambard Kingdom Brunel in Essex, and now I have come across another possible association!
In 1854 Britain entered the Crimean War and a British Army Hospital was set up in Turkey. Such were the poor conditions at the hospital that Florence Nightingale lobbied the Government for improvements. In February 1855 Brunel was invited by the Permanent Under Secretary at the War Office to design a pre-fabricated hospital for use in the Crimea, that could be built in Britain and shipped out for speedy erection. Brunel designed a wooden unit ward to house 50 patients, 90 feet (27 m) long by 40 feet (12 m) wide, divided into two wards. The design took Brunel six days in total to complete.
So, what is the association with Essex? On reading Coastal Essex by Robert Simper, I found reference to the North Fambridge Yacht Club, formed in 1898. A wooden shed was purchased as a clubhouse, and this shed is apparently one of Brunel’s wooden hospital ward units which were returned to Britain at the end of the war.
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North Fambridge Yacht Club clubhouse  (Photo: Tony Crosby)
Uttlesford DC Local Heritage List
In the November 2018 edition of this Newsletter (no. 25) we reported on the newly compiled Local Heritage List (LHL) for Uttlesford District Council. This consisted of over 400 properties and other historic structures, including a number of industrial and transport buildings. Work on producing an updated draft began during lockdown last year and the revised version is now in the consultation phase. If approved this will add a further 60 properties to the LHL. Amongst these 60 sites are:

· Ashdon Halt – the earth platform with sleepers as the retaining wall and a 19th century timber bodied former GER carriage body located on the platform as the former waiting room on the former Audley End to Bartlow branch line.

· Railway Bridge, Debden Road, Saffron Walden close to the former Saffron Walden Station.
· Bartlow Station marker stone
· Various directional signposts

· POW Camp 116, Hatfield Heath
· WWII Nissen huts on the former Little Easton Airfield
· Saffron Walden Water Works
· Wenden railway viaduct, south of Audley End Station (see photo below: Tony Crosby)
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Protection Granted to Mystery 19th-Century Merchant Shipwreck Discovered in the Thames Estuary in Essex
A mystery well-preserved shipwreck which was involved in day-to-day merchant trading in slate and coal by river and sea in England in the mid- to late-19th century has been granted protection by the Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport on the advice of Historic England. The precise identity of the wreck is not yet known.

The wooden cargo vessel, known as WA08, in the Thames Estuary in Essex, has been protected by scheduling which means recreational divers can dive it but its contents are protected by law and must remain in situ.

WA08 – West Barrow Sandbank, Thames Estuary, Essex

This well-preserved wreck of a mid- to late-19th century wooden cargo ship (38 metres long and 9 metres wide) was discovered in 2016 during a routine survey by the Port of London Authority. It probably had three masts and was carrying a large cargo of Cornish roofing slates when it sank, possibly through running aground on the West Barrow Sands. Although part of the hull and deck are missing, the wreck is in a remarkable condition, with features such as parts of masts, the rudder and the bowsprit – the long spar which extends from the vessel’s bow – surviving.

While this type of ship was once common around the coast of England, very few survive today. The closest known casualty in time, date, cargo and location is the three-masted Welsh schooner Myvanwy, which ran aground on West Barrow Sand on 21 May 1904. It was carrying slate from Antwerp in Belgium to Woolwich in London.
This wreck is at risk of decay due to shifting sands. More detailed analysis has the potential to enhance our understanding of the Cornish slate trade across north-west Europe at a time when the slate industry was dominated by slate from North Wales and Welsh ports became hubs for international trade.
From Historic England website.
News from the Association for Industrial Archaeology

In the spring edition of Industrial Archaeology News (no.196) there is a detailed article on various of the Restoration Grants recently given by the AIA to fund the restoration of a variety of industrial and transport buildings, vehicles, vessels and other artefacts. One of the featured projects outlines progress on the restoration of the wooden lighter ‘Susan’. This is the only surviving wooden lighter from the Chelmer & Blackwater Navigation and is now owned by the Susan Trust. She was built in 1953 by R & J Prior of Burnham-on-Crouch for Brown & Sons, timber merchants of Chelmsford. Restoration work is being undertaken at St Osyth Boatyard and when completed Susan will be moored on the River Chelmer at Sandford Mill, Chelmsford, from where the Susan Trust will run boat trips.
Mills Archive
Last month the Mills Archive circulated the latest edition of their online feature: Milling around the World – British Empire Mills. It features an archive photograph (below) of Cramphorn’s Bulford Roller Mills, along with a short history of the Mill built in the early 19th century and originally water powered. This document can be accessed by following this link:
https://mailchi.mp/millsarchive.org/milling-around-the-world-british-empire-mills-part-2?e=4ae1926198
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The Life and Times of the 

Eastern Counties Railway 

Telling how Colchester got the train 

 

 

 

A talk by Peter Jones 

 

24 th   March 2021   7.00pm via Zo om     To book please email   jgiffould@aol.com     Zoom link will be sent  on  23 rd   March  
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CHELMSFORD CIVI SCIETY
—_—~—
Teses

RDF to RADAR - my parents’ contribution to
Hitler’s downfall and how | came to be!
Chris Neale BSc FIET

Programme Manager, Chelmsford Science and Engineering Society

19:30 Wednesday 14th April 2021 Via Zoom

With war clouds looming in the 1930s, there seemed to
be no defence against fast moving airborne invaders. As a
matter of urgency scientists were tasked with addressing
this problem and early experiments with radio waves
demonstrated that they could be used to detect aircraft by
reflection. Thus was born what we now called RADAR
(Radio Direction and Ranging) but at that time, to disguise
its real purpose, was referred to as ‘RDF’. It was, never the
less, still a secret capability not fully disclosed to the
public until VJ day, 17 August 1945.

This talk highlights the roles played by two of the many
hundreds of RAF personnel who helped deliver this initially
primitive capability to a level that ensured that a German
invasion was thwarted and then provided the means to take
the fight to the ‘Fatherland’ through the precision bombing
of Hitler's war machine.

Email info@chelmsfordcivicsociety.co.uk to book
A Zoom link will be sent the day before the event
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[image: image14.png]DANIELL West Bergholt and

Maidenburgh Street,
Cclchester

1830 to 1958 a brewer and an owner

Almost the last of the old Colchester breweries, that of Daniells, which lost its independance to
the London brewers, Truman, Hanbury and Buxton in 1958, also dates from the 1830's, when
Thomas Daniell was at the Hythe, moving to start the long family connection with West
Bergholt, during the following decade. In 18565 he was described as a brewer, maltster,
brickmaker, farmer and general merchant of Spreading Oak Farm, where he and his son
continued until the 1880's.

In 1866, F.W.Bishop, who held the Northgate Brewery in Northgate Street at the time of the
Crimean War, was trading with E.S.Daniell as Daniell and Bishop at the Castle Brewery in
Maidenburgh Street. The Daniell family made their mark in 1876 by inscribing their initials at
high level in the brickwork, these being ESD, WGD, EOD and TCD. S.W.Crooke replaced Bishop
in 1878, and Samuel Chaplin took his place in the 1890's, when the style of the firm was
changed to Daniell and Sons Breweries Ltd. of Colchester and West Bergholt.

In 1887, Daniell and Sons of West Bergholt Brewery merged and the firm was then renamed as
Daniell Brothers and Company, Castle Brewery. In 1888, it was noted that Daniells had 147
public houses and hotels. In 1892, it was noted that brewing had ceased at the Castle
Brewery. The trading name of Daniell Brothers and Company continued until 1958 when the
company was taken over by Truman, Hanbury and Buxton and Company Ltd., who then
changed the name once more to Daniell and Sons Breweries Ltd. Much of the Castle brewery
premises are still intact, although converted for use as private housing and to house the
Colchester Museum Resources department.

The licensing records from 1872 onwards also mention owners Shepherd Thomas Daniell of
Donyland, and William Wilberforce Daniell of West Bergholt.

From... The Inns, tavers and Pubs
of Coichester By Jess A. Jephcott
Sel published 1995
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A talk by Peter Jones



24th March 2021

7.00pm via Zoom



To book please email

jgiffould@aol.com



Zoom link will be sent on 23rd March

image1.tiff







image2.jpeg







image3.png








